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Prayer of
St Francis of Assisi

Lord, make me an instrument of your peace;
where there is hatred, let me sow love;
where there is injury, pardon;
where there is doubt, faith;
where there is despair, hope;
where there is darkness, light;
and where there is sadness, joy.

O Divine Master,
grant that | may not so much seek to be consoled as to console;
to be understood, as to understand;
to be loved, as to love;
for it is in giving that we receive,
it is in pardoning that we are pardoned,
and it is in dying that we are born to Eternal Life.

This prayer of Saint Francis of Assisi is often used by Credit Union members” at the beginning or at the end of
their meetings. It is even referred to in some places as the “Credit Union Prayer”.
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Our
Member Service Charter

THE CREDIT UNION'S EXPECTATIONS
OF ITS MEMBERS

« Toremain loyal to their Credit Union

« Tomaintain a professional manner when conducting
business at the Credit Union.

« Toberespectful to employees and other members.

« Tobe co-operative by way of providing all the necessary
information requested by employees.

« To take the initiative on issues affecting them.
« Toseek clarification on problematic issues.
+ Tomaintain high levels of honesty and integrity.

+ To be punctual for appointments and any other meetings
at the Credit Union.

« Todisplay care and consideration for Credit Union
property and facilities.

WHAT MEMBERS CAN EXPECT TO RECEIVE
IN TERMS OF SERVICE

« Prompt, professional, efficient service with an emphasis
on service excellence.

+ Dedication to adding value to the members' experience.
« Keeninterest in making the member feel appreciated.
+ Accuracy on members'accounts.

« Remittances processed in a timely manner
(two (2) working days).

« Information on the Credit Union’s products and services.
« Guidance on financial planning.

« Effective communication on the Credit Union’s policies
and procedures.

« Timely response to queries and telephone calls.



OUR
VISION

OUR
MISSION

CORE
VALUES

TO BE THE LEADING PROVIDER OF FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS FOR ALL OF
OUR MEMBERS.

TO BE THE MOST EFFICIENT PROVIDER OF CREDIT UNION SERVICES
AND PRODUCTS THAT DEVELOP AND SUSTAIN THE SOCIO-ECONOMIC
STANDARDS OF ALL MEMBERS BASED ON CO-OPERATIVE PRINCIPLES.

THE CREDIT UNION SHALL BE MANAGED AND DIRECTED IN A MANNER
THAT REFLECTS THE PRINCIPLES OF INTEGRITY, INNOVATION,
TRANSPARENCY, HONESTY, TEAMWORK, PROFESSIONALISM, CARE AND
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE AND ADHERENCE TO THE CREDIT UNION'S
ETHICAL VALUES.
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AGENDA

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

Ascertainment of Quorum

Call to Order

Prayers/St. Francis of Assisi

Apologies for Absence

Welcome

Acknowledgement of other Organisations

Special Presentations

Credentials Committee Report

Appointment of Election Chairman

Commencement of Voting for election to the
Board of Directors, Supervisory Committee and
Credit Committee

Adoption of Standing Orders

Minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on
July 2, 2022

Matters arising from Minutes of Annual General
Meeting held on July 2, 2022

Reports 2022 - 2023

a) Board of Directors

b) Credit Committee

c) Supervisory Committee
d) Auditors

e) Financial Statements

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

Fixing of Maximum Liability
Appropriation of Surplus
Appointment of Auditors

Close of Voting for elections to the Board of Directors,
Supervisory Committee and Credit Committee

Amendments of By-laws 33(1)(a)(xi), , 33(1)(b), 33(1)(c),
33(2), 34 and 44(3)

Resolutions

Results of Elections to the Board of Directors,
Supervisory Committee and Credit Committee

Vote of Thanks
Prize Giving
Any Other Business

Adjournment

S &ﬂkﬁbd’

Secretary
Board of Directors

2023 BOARD REPORT



youre Better

¥ With U¥/

f BWU CO-OPERATIVE

CREDIT UNION LIMITED

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS
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PRESIDENT
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Sis. Novaline Brewster Bro.Eric Smith Bro. Shomari Inniss
VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER

Sis Marsha Greenidge Bro. Damian Mascoll Sis Fiona Goodridge
ASSISTANT SECRETARY ASSISTANT TREASURER DIRECTOR
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Sis. Carolyn Barton
CHAIRPERSON

Bro. Harcourt Husbands Sis. Serena Browne
VICE CHAIRMAN SECRETARY

Bro. Kemar Saffrey Bro. Sherwin Greenidge
ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEMBER
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Bro. Kemar Holder
CHAIRMAN
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VICE CHAIRPERSON

Sis. Alicia Pilgrim
ASSISTANT SECRETARY
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SECRETARY

Sis. Daceia Bailey
MEMBER
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Bro. Zandre Bowen
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

f BWU CO-OPERATIVE

CREDIT UNION LIMITED

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Sis. Alana Cadogan
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

Sis. Shelley Nicholls
Hunte

CHIEF LEGAL &
COMPLIANCE MANAGER

Sis. MarieTheodore
CHIEF OPERATIONS
OFFICER

Sis. Deborah Currency-Hunte
CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCE

& ORGANISATION
DEVELOPMENT OFFICER

Bro. Antonio Arthur
MANAGER OF
INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Sis. Valerie Hope
MARKETING &
COMMUNICATIONS
MANAGER

Sis. Lisa Collymore
BRANCH MANAGER

Sis. Michaela Niles
BRANCH MANAGER
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER JuannMcCarthy .......cccooeeinnecinnnnee Relationship Officer
Zandre Bowen SherriTaylor.......ccocooevveiiineininnn Relationship Officer
Shavonne Dottin.........c.cocccevevrenccnnne. Relationship Officer
FINANCE Jamaro Yearwood....... Member Experience Representative
AlanaCadogan ..........c.ccccceveveveueeennnne. Chief Finance Officer Kathleen Broome ........ Member Experience Representative
Kristina Browne...........cccoovveeererriieneerennnnn. Finance Officer Toni Worrell ... Member Relations Officer
Akilah Morgan...........c.cccoceivevereiicieinenna, Finance Assistant Dario Yearwood........... Member Experience Representative
JelaniHope....................... Finance Assistant- Card Services Omelle Broomes..........ccceeveeencnennnnne Telephone Operator
Shonelle Holmes ...........cccooeueenee... Senior Collection Officer TiaClement .......ccooeeierieiieeeeeeecee e Receptionist
Sharon HOpe........ccoueuvierueieeiiceeieieiaens Collection Officer Charmaine Johnson...............cccoc....... Telephone Operator
Sasha Gibbons...........ccceceiiiiiiiiiie Collections Clerk / Customer Service Representative
KimHunte.......ccoooveierieeeeeeeee Branch Supervisor
HR & ADMINISTRATION Shakira Forde ...........coccceuvvnececirinenccnee Branch Supervisor
Deborah Currency-Hunte.......... Chief Human Resource and Shana Taylor...........ccccevieienicnieieniceee Branch Supervisor
Organization Development Officer SachaMondesir..........ccocccvvenreennencnn. Accounts Clerk/Teller
Gail Cumberbatch ..........ccccceveevennnn. Human Resource and Neville NUrSe .......cccoveienienienecene Accounts Clerk/Teller
Administration Officer Damian Gilkes.........cccccevevienienieieee Accounts Clerk/Teller
AngelaMason...........cocovurureeunennnee Administrative Assistant Joakima Rochester............................ Accounts Clerk/Teller
Michael Freeman.............ccoooeueveirenieererennnnes Office Assistant Keira Cumberbatch ............................ Accounts Clerk/Teller
Janice Griffith ............cccceveeiveeeiecen, Office Attendant Cherise Austin..........ccccoovuiiiiinnnnnn. Accounts Clerk/Teller
Derrick Hurdle ................. Security and Maintenance Officer
LucretiaHall...........ccoovveeueverrrrienne. Executive Secretary MARKETING
Valerie Hope ..........ccooviiniiininicic. Marketing Manager
INTERNAL AUDIT Adarian Brome .........c.cccoeeenenieeenennene Marketing Assistant
William Payne........ccocoeeeneeneneencencennne Internal Auditor
Dana WilSON.............covuevevereeerierereneeeeeie s Risk Officer PART-TIME/TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES
AkeeliaMaynard.............ccccccoeueneen. Internal Audit Assistant Edson Williams..........cccoceveeneencninnennee HR &Administration
Mary Haynes........ccooceveenenncneencnnncnne. HR & Administration
INFORMATION SYSTEMS JoanBest........ccoveeinniecinecen HR & Administration
Antonio Arthur ...................... Information Systems Manager Natalie Gilkes...........ccccceuveecininincnnne. Finance - Collections
Dario Holder ..........ccooeveveevereereninnen, Systems Administrator Natalia Williams.............ccccooniiniie Finance
Akeem Greaves ..........cccceevevveeveneeennens Information Systems
LEGAL & COMPLIANCE Jade-Amor Grant .........ccceeeevieeinnieeeeeene Operations
Shelley Nicholls Hunte................ccccocoeveurnnnnnne. Chief Legal & Kelly LEWIS ......c.coviiiiiiiiiiriccciccccce Operations
Compliance Officer Shamaria Brewster ...........cccccveevencvcnccncnnnnens Operations
Yvette Jordan-Dottin ............cccconeeee. Compliance Officer CarlKishna .........ccoooviiviiincicicceee Operations
Michelle Husbands ............. Securities Officer (secondment) Chelsea Brathwaite.............cccccoevveereciiieeinene. Operations
Erika White-Cummings .........cc.coccccvccenenncnnennn. Operations
OPERATIONS Ronisha Barrow..............ccccceeveveecninnerencneencecnennens Operations
Marie Theodore...........cccocveurevennnee Chief Operations Officer TIaBOWEN ... Operations
Lisa Collymore............cccceueveeverevreeererenennen, Branch Manager Tia Atwell........ocoooiiii, Operations
MichaelaNiles ..........cccocervirieeenirieeeen, Branch Manager OctaviaLewis........ccoceiiiiiinniiiiiiicice Operations
Janice BUrgess .........cccccceveveeeieeenennenn. Loans Underwriter Adrien Emmanuel...........ccccoeovevieeenieninieiee Operations
Keisha Goddard ............cccccccouevvenucnenncnnee Loans Underwriter

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

youre Better

11



Bro. Dalton Medford
PRESIDENT

President’'s Report

As we approach our 40th anniversary, we can reflect with pride knowing we
have been helping members across Barbados realize their dreams whether in
buying a home, a vehicle, starting a business, for education, or simply saving in a

secure financial institution.

Our prime objective has been about making life better for
members, giving back to our community, and ensuring the
credit union remains strong.

On reflection, we must acknowledge the significant
contribution of dedicated Boards of Directors, Supervisory
and Credit Committees, and other volunteers over these
years.

From inception, you, our loyal members, have been at the
heart of everything we do, and this has not changed. We
remain focused on assisting you and continue to look at
new ways to meet your needs. Without you, there would
be no Barbados Workers Union Co-operative Credit Union
Limited (BWUCCUL).

Sincere thanks for your trust and commitment over the past
four decades.

Our Staff

Our team has beenworking hard to ensure that the strategic
plan conceptualized in 2022 is effectively implemented.
Additionally, there has been the establishment of a new
organizational structure which has provided the staff with
greater clarity for their career path and more prospects for
upward mobility within the credit union.

The many internal promotions demonstrated the personal
growth and development within the organization, as we
position BWUCCUL as an excellent place to work and do
business.

12

To every member of our team, a sincere thank you for your
continuous hard work, dedication and improvement over
the years.

Performance

This has been another good year for our credit union with an
increase in assets, surplus, and membership. Delinquency
was kept at a record low, compared to the national industry
standards, details of which are outlined in this annual
report.

Strong Risk Management

Given the nature of our business, we navigate various
types of risks daily, as a result, we are placing significant
emphasis on risk management.

We must track and analyze our risk profile as we strategize
and plan the growth of our credit union. Risk tolerance
must be measurable as we position the organization to
successfully address threats to its assets and reputation.

The Technology Thrust

We continue to place greater emphasis on the use
of technology in our daily operations throughout the
Credit Union. It must be mentioned at this juncture that
technology is expensive and consistently changing. We
have no choice but to embrace it, to stay in line with market
changes and member expectations.

2023 BOARD REPORT
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Wherever possible we will seek to partner with institutions
with similar objectives, to reduce the cost, while we provide
all the services to enhance your digital experience.

Going Forward

During the last year, Deposit Insurance has continued to
occupy our minds. Why should we an indigenous institution
continue to beg and labour with the authorities while
other institutions foreign to us receive the benefits? The
question is, why after all these years are we still beggars in
our own home?

As such we have called on the Barbados Cooperative and
Credit Union League to keep advocating on our behalf to
move the dream to a reality.

Also, over the years, the success of the movement has
attracted greater scrutiny fromits regulators, The Financial
Services Commission (FSC), as it relates to the governance
and compliance stipulations for credit unions.

At BWUCCUL we will continue to adapt and strive to meet
those demands, as we welcome the oversight which will
lead to greater safety and soundness of our members’
deposits.

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

We acknowledge that the responsibilities of a credit union
director must be equivalent to the director of any other
financial institution to maintain the confidence of the
regulators, members, and the wider community.

At the same time, we do not want to see the end of the
voluntary ethos of credit unions, owned and controlled
by their members, where members can have a say in the
management of the credit union at every level. We must be
careful not to throw out the baby with the bath water. We
have a proven and trusted business model different from
retail banks and other financial providers.

We must have a blend of trained professionals and ordinary
members to confront the challenges of the changing times.

Credit unions have a strong and trusted brand in
communities throughout the country. This is very true of
the Barbados Workers Union Co-operative Credit Union.

youre Better

With Us/
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In this 40th Anniversary year, the Credit Union is banking
on Growth Through Innovation. Despite the unprecedented
economic challenges faced in the last few years, over the
last financial period, the Credit Union continued to show
its resilience and delivered a strong financial performance,
while effectively meeting members’ needs for loans and
savings, introducing more value-added services and
enhancing our compliance with regulatory requirements.
The road ahead is filled with possibilities for the Credit
Union to be even more efficient and successfully stay ahead
of developments in the financial services landscape.

We are in the second year of our 3-year strategic plan and
the continued introduction and implementation of the
documented ideas and plans will push the Credit Union
forward tobecome astronger, more visible, and competitive
financial services player in Barbados. In this financial year,
to support the execution of the planned strategy, the
Management team worked with a consultant to introduce
a measurement and evaluation framework, which will allow
for more formal tracking of the Credit Union’s progress
towards achieving the detailed strategic goals and meeting
the key performance indicators.

The Barbados economy continued to improve in 2022
following the major economic fallout from the COVID-19
global pandemic and this positive performance continued
into 2023 withthe Central Bank of Barbados(CBB)projecting
growth of between 4 to five per cent this year, following
economic growth of 6.4 per centin the first quarter of 2023.
The prospects are for a strong performance in the tourism
industry and an uptick in the construction sector, which
should benefit many of our members.

Inthe financial sector, there hasbeenanincrease indemand
for credit and a reduction in non-performing loans, which is
encouraging and should bode well for our Credit Union. The
Central Bank will also continue to work with the Financial
Services Commission to strengthen risk management,
governance, and compliance within the market and we will
ensure that we remain compliant or ahead of regulatory
changes.
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m' Board of Directors
- Report

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OVERVIEW

The credit union has ended the financial year with an
exceptional performance. At the end of March 2023, the Net
Surplus was recorded at $2,431,681 and total assets grew to
$213,077,005. Our revenue pillars also increased, with loans
rising by 12.3% to $159,634,829 and deposits by 6.2% to
$191,659,199, while our delinquency ratio fell to 4.26%. Also
moving up was our membership, which grew by 4.6% in the
year under review.

OPERATIONS

With Covid 19 no longer a major health emergency, and the
increased return to normalcy, business activities steadily
resumed and most of the Operations department's main
key performance indicators (KPIs) were met. In keeping
with our motto “you are better with us”, the Operations
team embraced a “members first” philosophy, centred
on delivering efficient services that fully catered to their
financial needs and it brought positive returns.

In the year under review, the Operations department was
restructured, with Loans, Member Services, and Teller
sections being unified. which resulted in new team roles
and revised responsibilities. This change led to enhanced
overall operational efficiencies and resulted in improved
workflows and processes that positively impacted on the
members’ experiences.

While our main branch (Trident House) continued to meet
desired targets, with the introduction of dedicated Branch
Managers there were also significant improvements in the
performance of the Qistins and Speightstown branches.
Those two locations exceeded their targets for the 2022~
2023 financial year by $3.2M and $3.7M respectively.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Our business operations continued to grow with the Credit
Union conducting 186,701 transactions compared to 168,000
the previousyear. With the removal of COVID-19 restrictions,
members visited all the branches more frequently, but there
was also an increase in the use of online banking facilities.

2023 BOARD REPORT
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Total deposits grew by 6.2% and the Credit Union has placed
increasedemphasisonbuildingitsoveralldeposits. Withthe
introduction of two new savings products, we are refining
our savings portfolio and working to secure increased
interest and uptake among the current membership, while
seeking to attract new members and business to the Credit
Union.

In this financial year, we onboarded 2,496 new members
and the total membership count for the Credit Union now
stands at 30,089. During the second half of the year, the
Operations team worked in collaboration with Marketing to
stage several member outreach and engagement sessions
in highly trafficked spaces across Barbados, which
successfully generated new business.

CARD AND CONVENIENCE SERVICES

The debit Mastercard has been extremely well received
and heavily utilized by members, with total cardholders at
16,900. In the final quarter of 2022, during the Christmas
period, over 31,000 transactions, totalling more than S12M
were facilitated online, in-store, and overseas, using our
new debit Mastercard. There have been no major fraud
incidents, thanks in part to our industry-leading, real-time
fraud prevention platform.

There was also a significant uptake in members using
technology to transact business with the Credit Union over
the last year as the number of online banking users rose
to 10,358. With the enhancement of our online application
platform, there was also an increase in digital applications
for both loans and membership, with approximately 25% of
applications being submitted online.

To support our Debit Mastercard service and help
members successfully navigate and mitigate potential
card challenges, the Credit Union launched an educational
campaign to provide more insights on dealing with
fraud alerts and card disputes. Members have also been
encouraged to utilize their cards more at point-of-sale
locations island-wide.

Generally, the Operations team will continue to build on the
strategies that have worked well for the Credit Union to
date and will be focused on optimizing processes, building
member satisfaction, and generating greater revenue for
the Credit Union.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Globally, risk management is growing in importance,
especially in the area of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
across most sectors and industries. This has become a
key requirement and area of focus for financial services
reqgulators. In seeking to remain competitive and compliant,
the Credit Unionis currently developing an ERM framework.
The ERM approach takes an integrated and holistic view

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

of the risks facing the Credit Union. This increases the
knowledge and understanding of the interrelations of
enterprise risks among the various departments.

Risk is defined as the possibility that events will occur and
affect the achievement of the Credit Union’s strategy and
objectives. In seeking to implement an ERM Framework,
the Credit Union must understand and identify our risks and
determine what amount and type of risk we are willing to
pursue to achieve our strategy. This process refers to the
Risk Appetite, which, along with the Risk Profile, are key
components of the framework.

A primary objective of ERM is to identify and assess
how the Credit Union can create and protect our value
and stakeholder interests by providing the information
necessary for the Board of Directors and management to
make better-informed decisions. By extension, this will
improve the Credit Union’s overall performance as we strive
to meet our vision and mission and achieve the strategies
and business objectives set. ERM is an ongoing process
that continuously evolves to accommodate changes in the
internal and external risk environments.

The development and implementation of the framework will
result in more cohesion and coordination in managing the
risks that arise. This will provide several benefits such as:

. Increasing the range of opportunities available to the
Credit Union

. Identifying and managing risk across the Credit Union

. Increasing positive outcomes and advantages while

reducing negative surprises
. Reducing performance variability
. Improving resource deployment

. Enhancing enterprise resilience

TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCES

This year a strong emphasis was placed on ensuring that
our IT infrastructure remained as robust as required based
on the emergence of new technological threats. Given the
importance of data security, significant upgrades were
made to the infrastructure, focusing on improvements to
both onsite and off-island backup solutions, specifically
designed with the threat of ransomware in mind. We
have also engaged the services of a globally recognized
IT security company to provide 24/7 network monitoring,
annual vulnerability scans and patch management services
to reduce potential cyber-attacks.

Additionally, the credit union continued improvements
to its online banking platform and SMARTnet mobile app,

youre Better

With Us/

15



launching the SMARTPay online bill payment feature in the
last quarter of the year. This new service allows members to
pay their bills directly from their credit union account using
their computer, tablet, or smartphone.

Internally, the credit union has also made significant
efficiency improvements, moving towards online ticketing
systems for handling internal issues, and the rollout of
electronic document management and storage across all
departments.

LEGAL & COMPLIANCE

The Legal and Compliance department, in collaboration
with its external partners, continued to ensure that
securities were securely acquired and maintained. The
strengthening of the compliance structure also retained
importance, as well as understanding and implementing
the requirements of the Data Protection Act. The staff was
trained in safe cybersecurity methods to protect the Credit
Union's information in the face of rising cybersecurity
threats in both the public and private sectors.

Great strides were made in improving the Anti-Money
Laundering/Counter-Financing of Terrorism/ Counter-
Proliferation Financing (AML/CFT/CPF) infrastructure
with the implementation of the transaction monitoring
software. The Credit Union also worked aggressively to
increase compliance with the Retrospective Due Diligence
laws and has accounted for and/or updated over 90% of
member accounts.

In January 2023, the Financial Services Commission (FSC)
published the Corporate Governance Guideline 2023.
This document contained several notable changes to the
governance of credit unions, including the presence of
non-Executive Independent Directors on the Board of
Directors and the presence of a Lead Independent Director.
The Corporate Governance Guideline also detailed the
requirement for FSC registrants to have an Audit Committee
and a Risk Management Committee, which our Credit Union
has now implemented.

During the consultation period, prior to the dissemination
of the report, the Credit Union made submissions and
submitted queries on several aspects of the Guideline.
The FSC has undertaken to provide additional guidance
regardingthe implementation of the requirements. The FSC
has also indicated that the Corporate Governance Guideline
is to be read in conjunction with the Guideline on Fitness
and Propriety. This latter document, as well as the Guideline
on Domestic Non-Bank Systemically Important Financial
Institutions (SIFls) are at the consultation stage and the
industry has been invited to share recommendations and
feedback by the end of May 2023. Our Credit Union is
reviewing these documents and feedback will be provided
within the stipulated timeframes as required by the FSC.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Organizational Restructuring

The Organizational Restructuring which commenced during
the previous financial year was successfully completed
during the financial year 2023 with minimal disruptions.

Sis Marie Theodore a seasoned professional in the financial
services sector joined the organization on 18 July 2022
as Chief Operations Officer (COQ), while two other key
appointments of Branch Managers were filled internally
through the promotion of Sis. Michaela Niles and Sis. Lisa
Collymore, who took on the roles in September and October
2022, respectively. This outcome was in line with the Credit
Union's approach to providing staff with opportunities to
advance their careers and personal development within
the organization. It must be noted that the vast majority of
vacant positions resulting from the restructuring exercise
were filled by existing employees.

Nomenclature Changes

Changes in nomenclature became effective on 2 July
2022. These amendments were linked to the organization
restructuring and were consistent with comparative
organizations in the industry. They are as follows:

oLD NEW
General Manager Chief Executive Officer

Accounts Manager Chief Finance Officer

Legal and
Compliance Manager Chief Legal and Compliance

Officer

Assistant Accountant Finance Officer

Accounts Assistant Finance Assistant

In addition to the above, with the changing structure in the
Operations department and the refinement of roles, the
Loans Officer titles were eliminated and were replaced with
Relationship Officers and Loan Underwriting Officers.

Employee Engagement

The BWUCCUL conducted its first official Employee
Engagement Survey in July 2022. The focal points of the
exercise were:

. Average level of engagement in the organization
. Average result by department

. The results between the number of engaged vs not
engaged and disengaged

. Risk factors, critically low engagement rates, and the
most problematic issues

The Human Resources team is working with the various
department heads and supervisors to address the

2023 BOARD REPORT
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areas identified for immediate attention following the
engagement survey.

Job Evaluation

During the financial year 2023 the BWUCCUL has embarked
on a Job Evaluation Exercise with the assistance of
consultants, to determine the value that each position
brings to the company. This is ongoing.

Union Negotiations

Negotiations for the period April 2019 - March 2022 were
successfully completed and for the first time in the history
of the Credit Union, there was a formally signed Collective
Agreement on record. This new agreement triggered the
disbursement of ‘Back Pay’ to relevant staff.

Learning and Development

Learning and development remains a key focus, as
evidenced by the significant number of training sessions
coordinated for various stakeholders throughout the year.

Credit Union Governance and Responsibilities of Credit
Union Management and Directors in the Strategic Planning
Processwereamongthe manytrainingeventsthatattracted
great interest and resulted in significant participation.

Data Privacy and Cyber Security Training was also seen
as critical given the challenges experienced by similar
organizations, as a result, management and all staff were
required to attend coordinated sessions.

As a requlatory requirement, the Anti-Money Laundering
and Combatting the Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT)
Governance and Oversight training programme was
completed by management.

In preparation for the new requirements, following the
release of the FSC’s Corporate Governance Guideline 2023.
along with ensuring that key Credit Union stakeholders
better understand the requlatory expectations surrounding
Corporate Governance, several members of the Board of
Directors, Credit Committee, Supervisory Committee,
management, and other staff, participated in an intensive
six-week course on Corporate Governance. This was held
by the Swoboda Research Centre, an independent, not-for-
profit research organization dedicated to developing the
resilience and growth of credit unions in Great Britain and
Ireland.

The course on Corporate Governance was held by the
Centre in conjunction with the Caribbean Confederation
of Credit Unions and attracted volunteers and staff from
Credit Unions in the Caribbean. The volunteers and staff
also strengthened their knowledge in AML/CFT/CPF
matters through training facilitated by the Kixko AML
eLearning management system.

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

NEW PRODUCTS

Following an assessment of the financial services market,
a decision was made to introduce another premier savings
product and create a more beneficial retirement savings
option. As such the Credit Union introduced in October
2022, the SMARTAccumulator Savings Plan, an enhanced
version of the existing SMARTBuilder plan as well as the
new SMARTLiving Retirement Savings Account, which
is free of the limitations currently associated with the
Registered Retirement Savings Plans (RRSPs). It is
anticipated that these new products will help the credit
Union attract new deposits and members.

The Credit Union also launched its new SMARTPay Bill
Payment Platform powered by SurePay in February 2023.
This new feature, accessible via our Online Banking portal,
allows members to make payments to almost any biller
in Barbados. SMARTPay received extensive promotion
in print, radio, and social media, as well as on the credit
union’s channels. Additionally, members received an
introductory text message with a link to the new web page,
featuring tutorial videos to help optimise the use of this new
convenience service.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

WE CARE Outreach Programme

Following its relaunch and up to the end of March 2023,
the WE CARE outreach programme received just over 50
applications and issued approximately $22,960 worth of
grants. Over 30 members have benefited directly from
the initiative and issued funds that have gone towards
groceries, medical expenses, support for academic,
leadership, and sporting activities of children, bill payment
assistance, and home repairs. In addition, a total of 10
charitable projects and organizations, inclusive of two
schools, have received support from our credit union for
their good works in the areas of Youth, Sports, Culture and
Heritage, the Environment, and Community. This helps
to build our reputation as a good corporate citizen and
generates goodwill that can help us attract new members.
We welcome member donations so that we can offer more
assistance to members in need and worthy community-
based charities. Should you be interested in donating to the
WE CARE Programme, contact us at wecare@bwuccu.com
or call our Marketing Manager at 832-1237. To learn how to
apply fora WE CARE member grant or charitable grant, visit
the programme webpage at https://bwuccu.com/wecare

Youth Scholarships

The Credit Union offers 6 categories of scholarships to
members from primary to tertiary school level and this
was promoted to members via email, in branch screen
promotions, print, and social media ads, as well as on the
Credit Union’s website. In the 2022/2023 financial year, 11
members were awarded scholarships totalling $9.500 and
were recognized at a brief ceremony held at the Bridgetown
branch in April 2023.
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We encourage junior members to take advantage of the
available scholarship opportunities. For more details,
members can visit our youth scholarship page on our
website.

The Credit Union also sponsored several small business
initiatives, community events and youth projects over
the year. These alliances and partnerships facilitated
the promotion of our brand and allowed us to attract new
business and members while being a good corporate
citizen.

MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS

The priority of the Marketing Department in financial year
2023 was to build the Credit Union brand and create greater
awareness of our products and services in preparation for a
successfulrebrandingand to help meet set revenue targets.
Other key areas of focus included developing beneficial
relationships, introducing new products to market,
facilitating more member engagement, coordinating more
value-based activities for members, and ultimately driving
impactful marketing and communication initiatives.

Public Relations & Member Communication

To ensure current and prospective members and other
stakeholders had access to accurate, up-to-date
information on credit union activities and offers, the
marketing department updated the Credit Union website
and introduced new online forms that allowed applicants to
apply for a loan or sign up for membership fully online. New
web pages were also created to enhance communication
around all new initiatives and products and to feature each
branch and its team. These revisions, inclusive of more
consistent and modern-looking page designs, also ensured
that the website was search-engine optimized and more
visually appealing and mobile friendly.

The Credit Union also sought to build its followers and
engagement across social media. As such the content plan
was restructured to better inform, inspire, and entertain
members and target audiences. There was also an
increased focus on the generation of more video content.
This strategy has led to a substantial increase in followers
on our channels. In addition, to support the strategic
thrust to attract more viable business and youth members
a Tik Tok channel was established, and the Credit Union's
LinkedIn platform has been resurrected.

In accordance with our strategy to increase our market
visibilityandbetterreach currentand prospective members,
there was also a greater effort to engage the press and
strategic opinion leaders and to share all major credit union
activities on our social media channels. As such the Credit
Union received greater media coverage, which has helped
to build our brand awareness and reputation.

18

Member Education

The Credit Union provided more opportunities to educate
members and the wider public about various financial
topics, as well as share information and guidance to support
enhanced lifestyles. lin December 2022, the SMARTChoices
Webinar Serieswasintroduced with the Credit Union hosting
its first member education forum on the topic Saving for A
Strong Financial Future. In March, we held two additional
webinars. The first How to be Fearless Women was in honor
of International Women's Day and Women'’s history month,
and the second was a presentation on the Ins and Outs of
Investing in Renewable Energy, which included a review of
the Barbados Light & Power rate increase hearings with the
Fair Trading Commission.

To promote greater financial literacy and provide members
with useful content, the SMARTchoices blog was also
introduced on our website.

Market Research

Coordinating market research to support greater
evidence-based decision-making and to develop a better
understanding of members and their level of satisfaction
with BWUCCU was considered crucial. In May 2022, the
Credit Union coordinated an extensive Member Service
and Satisfaction Survey to generate valuable feedback
and insights from members. Additionally, the credit
union introduced a survey for new credit union members
to assess their membership onboarding, early credit
union experience, and determine how likely they were to
recommend the BWUCCUL.

Member Outreach

The marketing department collaborated with the Operations
Department to significantly increase member outreach
through savings and loan drives, with several activities
being held during the year to thank members and attract
new business. This included strategic member pop-ups,
corporate outreach, as well as in-branch promotions. The
Credit Unionalsointroduced incentive driven promotions to
build testimonials, encourage savings and increase brand
awareness.

Strategic Partnerships

Another key focus for the financial year 2022 was the
development of strategic relationships and partnerships
with businesses and organizations, which could increase
the funnel of sales referrals to the credit union and support
our growth strategy. In this regard, Memorandums of
Understandings were signed with Ko-op Electric Inc.,
a company owned by the Barbados Sustainable Energy
Cooperative Society Ltd (Co-op Energy) focused on the
sourcing and supply of Electric Vehicles, as well as Williams
Solar, a company that engages in the provision of Photo
Voltaic systems. The objective of these MOUs is to provide
financing to customers of the relevant businesses who
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want to purchase their products, as well as build the credit
union’s brand and reputation as a financier of Green Energy
products and services.

A Memorandum of Understanding was also signed with the
Barbados Youth and Business Trust. This new partnership
will provide us with the opportunity to provide members
with access to expert guidance and information to help
create successful businesses and develop the assets
required to support successful business loan applications.

The Global Bridges Initiative with the True Sky Credit Union
(True Sky) based in Oklahoma, USA, and the Worldwide
Federation of Credit Union, which was formalized with the
signing of a Memorandum of Understanding in financial
year 2021 continued with the formation of working groups,
comprising executives from both Credit Unions to discuss
the following areas:

. Integrating Credit Union Products & Reducing
Processing Barriers

. Digital Document Management

. Loan Automation
. Customer Relationship Management(CRM)Integration

. Creation of a We Care Foundation

. Member Engagement and evolving the Member
Experience

. Strategic Growth

In October 2023, a BWU Credit Union team, comprising the
CEQ, Marketing Manager, one Branch Manager and System
Administrator travelled to Oklahoma to get first-hand
exposure to True Sky’s branches, technology, software, and
processes, as well as meet and further engage members of
their leadership team on the detailed areas of focus.

The True Sky team was also hosted by the BWU Credit Union
inBarbadosinearly April2023. The partnership hasresulted
in introductions to service providers that the Credit Union
has engaged to enhance our technological infrastructure
and generated new ideas to improve the provision of
member services and overall member engagement.

Youth Activities

Strategically the Credit Union wants to attract more youth
members and increase the level of youth participation.
In response, the marketing department launched the
SMARTYouth Leaders Club (SYLC) for youth between the
ages 16 to 25, in June 2022, with the first club meeting held
in February 2023. The Club will be youth led and is intended
to help young people navigate the world of finance and
credit unionism, as well as develop valuable key life skills.
The club is expected to meet once a month starting in May
2023.

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

In November 2023, we hosted some financial literacy
sessions for fifth and sixth formers at Alexandra Secondary
School and included topics such as saving money,
budgeting, and spending best practices, debt management
and investing as well as credit heath and risk management.

To promote good savings habits among junior members, the
Save Up! Junior Savings Challenge encouraged our young
members to save $S300 in 30 Weeks. The winners were
awarded their prizes during this year's Youth Scholarship
Award Ceremony.

Branch & Anniversary Celebrations

It is important for the Credit Union to continue to provide
opportunities to showcase credit union history and
celebrate milestones with members. In this regard, 39th
anniversary celebrations were held in each branch on July
8 and the 7th Anniversary of the Qistins branch was also
marked on September 13, 2022.

International Credit Union Day

International Credit Union (ICU) Day was celebrated on
October 20, 2022, under the theme Empower Your Financial
Future With A Credit Union. To show our solidarity and mark
the occasion, branded treats were shared with members
in each branch, and Inspirational videos featuring our staff
and members were also produced and published on our
social media channels.

RETIREMENT

In November 2022, The Credit Union thanked Bro. Ashton
Turney, one of our longest-serving volunteers, in a touching
retirement function. Bro Turney served ably in almost every
volunteer position, starting with his service on the Credit
committee from 1990 to 1994. He was elevated to serving on
the Board in 1994/1995 when he was appointed as Assistant
Secretary, moving to Vice President in the following year
and then serving as President and valued counsellor for
many subsequent years to follow. His contributions to the
world of Credit Unionism also extended to his involvement
in the Barbados Cooperative Credit Union the Caribbean
Confederation of Credit Unions and Co-Operators General
Insurance Co Limited.

We extend our sincerest gratitude to Bro. Turney for his
stellar contribution, dedication, and service to the BWU
Credit Union and the wider co-operative sector and wish
him a happy and fulfilled retirement from formal service.

THE ROAD AHEAD

We remain committed to our vision to be the leading
provider of financial solutions for all our members and
to our strategy based on the pillars of Resilience, Risk
Management, Returns & Rebranding. We have come far
from our humble beginnings almost 40 years ago when our
founders sowed the seed, which has grown into the Credit
Union that we are today, with a membership base in excess

youre Better

With Us/

19



of 30,000 members and over $200 Million in assets. We have
made significant progress on the early mandate to provide
accessible savings and credit facilities for our members
and have effectively evolved our way of doing business
with strong operational procedures and robust and secure
technology, making it more convenient and easier for
members to do business with us.

This could only have been accomplished with the hard
work, creativity, commitment, and quality service of our
Credit Union staff members, the dedication of our pool
of volunteers that sit on our Board, Supervisory, Credit,
Standing and other Ad Hoc Committees, and the support
of you, our members. We extend our sincerest gratitude
to all our stakeholders for your past, current and upcoming
contributions to our accomplishments and count on your
continued trust and cooperation.

20

As a credit union, we will continue to support a member-
centric culture and sustainable growth. This will be
accomplished by forging more beneficial partnerships,
ensuring we have a well-trained, committed, and
engaged workforce, deploying creative, market-leading
sales strategies and practices, guaranteeing effective
compliance, encouraging and facilitating sustainable
investments, promoting savings and responsible credit
management. We willbuild our brand as wellas market share,
supporting greater member engagement and optimizing
technology. In doing so, we can best serve, sustain and
grow our membership and secure the successful future of
our credit union..

On to the next 40 years!
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Management

The Barbados Workers” Union Co-operative Credit Union Limited achieved remarkable growth during the 2022-
2023 fiscal year. Our organization demonstrated substantial progress across key indicators, including cash, loans,
deposits, membership, and assets, while keeping delinquency levels minimal.

CASH AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Our cash resources grew by 32% to $19.96 million, leading to
a liquidity ratio of 10.41%. To support loan portfolio growth,
we intentionally reduced financial investments by 21.94% or
$8 million.

Financial Investments and Cash
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45,000,000
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000

5,000,000

® Financial Investments M Cash

LOANS AND MORTGAGES TO MEMBERS AND CREDIT
RISK

Our creditunion witnessed aremarkable growth inloansand
mortgages to members, registering a substantial increase
of 12.31% during the year. The total loan portfolio reached
an impressive $159.63 million, with a notable breakdown
of growth across different categories. Personal loans
experienced a surge of $10.5 million, mortgages increased
by $6.2 million, and lines of credit expanded by $1.5 million.
This growth in lending activities reflects our commitment
to meeting the diverse financial needs of our members
while carefully managing credit risk.

Loans Growth
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GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

We are proud to report a notable improvement in our
delinquency ratio, which decreased from the previous
year's 4.89% to 4.26%. This achievement reflects our
ongoing dedication to building strong relationships with our
members and providing comprehensive support throughout
their financial journeys. QOur commitment to proactive
member engagement and personalized financial guidance
has significantly influenced this favourable outcome.

RISK EXPOSURE/DELINQUENCY RATIO
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LIABILITIES AND LIABILITIES TO MEMBERS

There was an increase in deposits, reflecting a growth rate
of 6.22%, equivalent to S11.2 million, resulting in a total of
$191.7 million. This growth can be attributed to a rise of $5.8
million in Membership Prime deposits, S774 thousand in
Smart Builder savings, S584 thousand in Special savings,
and $2.077 million in Smart Accumulator, one of our new
deposit products.

To support these deposits, our credit union offered an
average interest rate of 0.52%, resulting in an interest
expense of $.988 million.

In addition to the growth in deposits, our membership
base expanded at a rate of 4.60%, welcoming 2,496 new
members. This increase brings our total membership count
to 30,089, contributing to a rise in our qualifying shares,
which now stand at $2.8 million. Our continued success in
attracting and serving new members underscores the value
and trust they place in our credit union.
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Our total equity is $15.6 million with a $2.3 million increase
from previous year due to the growth in Net Surplus. While
our current ratio of 7.14% falls below the required 10%, it's
crucialtonotethesignificantreboundfromtheall-timelow of
1.45% in 2019, attributed to government debt restructuring,
loss on building valuation, and the introduction of IFRS 9. We
remain committed to strengthening our equity position for
enhanced financial resilience and long-term sustainability.

OPERATING INCOME

Our Total Operating Income increased by 14% or $1.6 million,
reaching $13 million. The growth was driven by a 20%
increase in Net Loan Interest Income, supported by the
expansion of loans. Additionally, Investment Income (net)
totalled $1.26 million. Other Income saw a 5% rise of $60.6
thousand, primarily from the collection of delinquency
and loan fees. These positive results reflect our ability to
generate income while providing valuable financial services
to our members.

Operating Income
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EXPENSE MANAGEMENT

With a prudent approach to expenses amidst economic
uncertainty, we effectively managed our costs throughout
the financial year. Despite this, we experienced a 6%
increase of S635 thousand. The main drivers of this
increase were building renovation expenses, totalling
S744 thousand, to restore the Fairchild Street building for
habitable use. Additionally, Information Systems expenses
rose by 31%, primarily due to charges associated with
Mastercard. Our diligent expense management allowed us
to navigate the challenges while strategically allocating
resources to crucial initiatives.
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CONCLUSION

The Credit Union successfully achieved a Net Surplus of $2.4 million as of March 31, 2023, reflecting our effective income
generation and diligent expense control. This positive outcome underscores our commitment to financial sustainability and
responsible financial management. As we move forward, our commitment to our membership remains unwavering. We will
continue to prioritize their needs and employ the principles of good corporate governance to ensure the continued success
of our Credit Union. With a focus on financial well-being and the highest standards of service, we are confident in our ability
to thrive in the ever-evolving financial landscape.

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

23



;@ BWU co-operanve yWBetter

~ CREDIT UNION LIMITED With Us/
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION
CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°7, 2023

@ bakertilly




26

THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED

Table of Contents
Page No.
Independent AUdItrs’ REpOrt ... 28
Statement of Financial POSItION ... s e 31
Statement of Changes in EQUItY ... 32
Statement of Comprehension INCOMEe ..o 33
Statement of Cash FIOWS ... e e 35
Notes to Financial Statements ... e 36

2023 BOARD REPORT



@ pakertilly

The Business Centre
Upton
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ayub kola@bakertillybarbados.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE
CREDIT UNION LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Barbados Workers' Union Co-operative Credit Union
Limited (the “Credit Union"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2023,
statements of changes in equity, comprehensive income, and cash fiows for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Credit Union as at March 31, 2023 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Credit Union in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA) and Internationa! Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (inciuding International Independence Standards) and we have fulfiled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Board of
Directors’ Report, Treasurer's Report and Supplementary information in the Annual Report 2022 - 2023 but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Annual report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report 2022 - 2023, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

ADVISORY - ASSURANCE - TAX

\ ' 1
Baker Tilly (Barbados) SCC trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Credit Union’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related te going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Credit Union or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Credit Union’'s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they couid
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Credit Union's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Credit Union’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinien. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Credit Union to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {cont'd)

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Credit Union on
business activities within the Credit Union to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internai control
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the Credit Union's members, in accordance with Sections 109 and 123 of the
Co-operatives Societies Act of Barbados. QOur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Credit Union’s members those matters we are required to state to it in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law and subject to any enactment or rule of faw to the contrary,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Credit Union and the Credit Union's
members, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

BARBADOS
June 12t 2023

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS' UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 3157, 2023

With comparative figures for 2022
(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

ASSETS

Cash resources
Interest receivable

Financial investments:

Amortized cost

Less expected credit allowance
FVOCI

FVTPL

Loans and mortgages to members
Less expected credit loss allowance

Other Assets

Accounts receivable - net
Prepaid expenses

Right of Use Assets
Property and equipment

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Liability to Non-members

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Lease Liability

Liabilities to Members
Deposits of members
Regulatory capital

Members’ Equity

Statutory reserve

Education fund

Common good fund

We Care Fund

Unrealised gain on investments
Undivided earnings

Total Members’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Members' Equity

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors:

Birector: ............. é@ ..................................

30|

Notes

(=24 )]

[sos-Ne-Re ]

4(a) & 9
4{a)&9

10

11
iR

12
13

14
15

16(a)
16(b)
16(c)
16(d)

2023
$

19,957,273
343,398

23,250,732

(215,446)
5,373,017
22,120
159,634,829

{2,928 579)
205,446 344

868,945
158,852
453,004
6,149 860

7,630,661
—213.077,005

2,445,758
526,199

2,971,857

191,659,199
2.849,100

194,508,209

10,353,606
20,700
88,956
89,995

3,036,457
2,007,035

— 15,506,749

.213.077.005

2022
$

156,097,364
337,306

31,213,229
(250,182)
5,474,384
22,120
142,141,741
_(3.019.005)

191,016,957
997,066
188,373
544,683

6,510,961

8.241,083
199,258,040

2,167,251
616,064

2.783.315

180,444,003
2,723,800

183,167,803

9,745,686
15,402
74,639
11,700

3,145,875

313,620

13,306,922

199,258,040

Director: ............ @W ............................
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023
With comparative figures for 2022
(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

Balance at March 31¢t, 2021

Net income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserves

Transfer to education fund

Transfer to common good fund

Transfer to we care fund
Disbursements from fund
Patronage Refund

Unrealised gain on investments for the year

Balance at March 312, 2022

Net income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserves

Transfer to education fund

Transfer to common good fund

Transfer to we care fund
Disbursements from fund
Patronage Refund

Unrealised loss on investments for the year

Balance at March 318 2023

Notes

16(a)
16(b)
16(c)
16(d)

16(a)
16(b)
16(c)
16(d)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Common We Unrealised

Statutory Education Good Care Gain on Undivided

Reserves Fund Fund Fund Investment Earnings Total _
¥ $ $ $ $ $ $

9,623,173 20,700 89,738 - 2,805,664 1449 12 540,724
- - - - - 490,050 490,050

122,513 - - - - (122,513) -

- 14,702 - - - (14,702) -
- - 4,901 - - (4,901) -
. - - 15,050 - (15,050) -
- (20,000} (20,000) {3,350) - 43,350 -
- - - - - (64,063) {64,063)
- - - - 340,211 - 340,211

9,745,686 15,402 74,639 11,700 3,145,875 313,620 13,306,922
- - - - - 2,431,681 2,431,681

607,920 ~ - - - (607,920) -

- 20,000 - - - (20,000) -
- - 24,317 - - (24,317) -
- - - 97,360 - (97,360) -
- (14,702) (10,000) (19,065) - 43,767 -
- - - - - (32,436) (32,436)
- - - - (109,418) - (109,418)

10,353,606 20,700 88,956 89,995 3,036,457 2,007,035 15,596,749

5
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023
With comparative figures for 2022

{Expressed in Barbados dollars)

Interest on loans
Interest on mortgages

Total Loan Interest Income

Less Interest on members’ deposits
Interest expense

Net Interest Income
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on savings account
Dividend income

Interest on investments
Total Investment Income
Less investment fees and charges
Net Investment Income
OTHER INCOME

Other operating income
Rental income

Total Other Income

Total Operating Income

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Notes 2023 2022
$ $
19 6,415,582 5,209,771
19 4,948,063 4,5639.684
11,363,645 9,749,455
19 (988.416}) (1,102,780)
10,375,229 8,646,675
19 1,607 -
19 46,296 119,745
19 1,267 815 1,358,500
1,305,718 1,478,245
(42,369) (27,216)
1,263,349 1,451,029
1,356,089 1,295,486
— 30,000 — 30,000
1,386,089 1,325,486
13024667 11423190
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT’D)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023
With comparative figures for 2022
{Expressed in Barbados dollars)
Notes 2023 2022
3 $
OPERATING EXPENSES
Payroli costs 3,821,441 3,708,203
Membership protection and governance 18 773,563 703,441
Occupancy costs 18 644,302 797,741
General and administrative expenses 18 412,058 519,105
Expected credit losses 7 1,020,506 1,578,716
Marketing costs 398,717 379,151
Depreciation 1M 899,882 816,885
Information systems expense 1,789,796 1,366,289
Building Remediation 744 960 -
Penalty and interest/ overages (951) {1.615)
Total Operating Expenses 10,504,274 ©.868,916
Profit before Interest for the year 2,520,393 1,554,274
Interest expense (31,785) (32,528)
Net profit for the year after interest and before
disbursements to funds 2,488,608 1,521,746
Disbursement from funds:
Common good fund 16{c) {10,000) (20,000)
We care fund 16(d) (19,065) (3,350)
Education Fund 16(b) (14,702} (20.000)
(43,767) (43,350)
Investment write-down (13,160) -
Impairment loss on building 11 - (988,346)
Net Income for the year 2,431,681 490,050
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investments for the year 8 (109.418) 340.211
Other comprehensive {loss)/income {109.418) 340,211
Total Comprehensive Income for the year — 2,322,263 — 830,261

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°7, 2023
With comparative figures for 2022
(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation

Expected credit loss
Dividend income

Interest income
Impairment loss on building
Interest expense

Operating loss before working capital changes
Increase/decrease in accounts payable
Decrease(increase) in prepaid expenses
Decrease(increase) in accounts receivable
Increase in loans to members

Increase in regulatory capital

Net Cash used in Operations

Interest received — loans
Interest paid

Net Cash used in Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment

Interest received on investments

Dividends received

Decrease in investments - net

Net Cash from Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in members’ deposits

Payment of lease liability

Patronage Rebate

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Increase in cash resources during year
Cash resources, beginning of year
Cash resources, end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2023 2022

$ $

2,431,681 490,050
899,882 816,885
1,020,506 1,579,716
(46,2986) (119,745)
(12,623,066) (11,107,955)
- 088,346

1,020,201 1,135,308
(7,297,092) (6,217,395)
351,345 (319,089)
29,521 (86,272)
126,211 (520,524)
(18,638,756) (19,568,241)
125,300 196,402
(25,303,471) (26,515,119)
11,357,553 9,832,906
(1,093,039) (1,246 841)
(15,038,957) (17,929.054)
(447,102) (668,461)
1,261,332 1,377,088
46,296 119,745
7.945 445 4 833,697
8,805,971 5,662,069
11,215,196 13,225,771
(89,865) (89,122)
(32,436) (64,063)
11,092,895 13,072,586
4,859,909 805,601
15,097,364 14,291,763
19,957,273 15,097,364
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

1. Reporting Entity
The Credit Union was registered on July 8, 1983 under the Co-operative Sccieties Act, Cap 378
and was continued under the Co-operative Societies Act 1990-23 as evidenced by a Certificate of
Continuance dated July 14" 1994. lts principal objectives include:

(@) the promotion of thrift among its members by providing means whereby savings can be
effected and shares in the society can be acquired, and

{b) the creation out of savings of its members of a source of credit available to its members on
reasanable terms and conditions.

The Credit Union's registered office is located at the corner of Fairchild & Nelson Streets,
Bridgetown, Barbados.

These financiat statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on June 12", 2023,

2. Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and their interpretations as adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and investments measured at fair value.

(b) The Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and
contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the reporting date and income and expenses
for the year then ended. Actual resuits could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical

judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are described below.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

{Expressed in Barbados dollars)

2. Basis of Preparation (cont’d)

(b) The Use of Estimates and Judgments (cont'd)

Key sources of estimation and uncertainty

Classification of financial assets:

Assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and assessment of
whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are SPPI on the principal amount
outstanding

Expected credit losses (ECL):

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating
forward-looking information into measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models
used to measure ECL.

impairment of financial instruments: determining inputs into the ECL measurement model,
including incorporation of forward-looking information. (See Note 3 (j) for further information).

Measurement of fair values:

A number of the Credit Union’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement
of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Credit Union uses market observable data as far as
possible.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as disclosed in Note 4 (f).
3. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Barbados dollars, which is the Credit Union's
functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Barbados dollars
has been rounded to the nearest dollar.

{b) Revenue Recognition

interest:

Interest income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability
(or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or
liability.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dolfars)

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Revenue Recognition (cont'd)

Dividend:
Dividend income is recorded by the Credit Union when the rights to receive income are
established.

Rent:
Rental income is recognised in statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
Over the term of the lease.

Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Barbados doilars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the reporting date are translated into Barbados dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at that date and the resulting gain or oss is included in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, except for the building which is stated at valuation less subseguent
depreciation.  Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Credit Union and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the straight-line
and reducing balance bases at rates designed to write off the cost of the assets over the
periods of their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. No depreciation is charged
on buildings in the year of valuation.

The following annual rates apply:

Computer equipment - 10% to 20%

Other furniture and equipment - 10%

Motor vehicle - 20% (reducing balance method)
Building - 2%

Leasehold improvements - 10%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dolfars)

3. Significant Accounting Policies {cont’d)

(d)y Property and Equipment (cont'd)

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
and these are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

(e) Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

(h  Taxation

Income Tax - The Credit Union is exempt from the payment of income tax under Section
9(1)(g) of the Income Tax Act, Cap. 73.

{g) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Credit Union reviews the carrying amounts of its property and
equipment and other non-financiat assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

{h) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Credit Union has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outfiow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

3. Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd)

(i)

Leases

Credit Union acting as a lessee:

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
Credit Union allocates consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
its relative stand- alone price.

The Credit Union recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initiai direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove any improvements made to branches or office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements
of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Credit Union’s incremental borrowing rate.
Generaliy, the Credit Union uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Credit Union determines its incremental borrowing rate by analysing its borrowings from
various external sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and
type of asset ieased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following;
+ fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

» variable lease payments that depend cn an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

+ amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

+ the exercise price under a purchase option that the Credit Union is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Credit Union is reasonabiy
certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the Credit Union is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the Credit Union's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Credit Union changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-
substance fixed lease payment.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

3.

40

Significant Accounting Policies {cont’d)

(i)

Leases (cont'd)

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in statement of comprehensive
income if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The Credit
Union presents right-of-use assets and the lease liability as a separate component on the
statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Credit Union has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases, including leases of IT equipment. The
Credit Union recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right of Use Assets

IFRS 16 replaced leases guidance IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16
introduced a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the
previous standard - i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

Definition of a lease:

Previously, the Credit Union determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or
comtains a lease under IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease. The
Credit Union now assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
of a lease, as explained in Note 3(i).

As a lessee:

As a lessee, the Credit Union leases branches and office premises. The Credit Union
previously classified these leases as operating leases under IAS 17 based on its assessment
of whether the lease fransferred substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset to the Credit Union. Under IFRS 16, the Credit Union
recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of branches and office
premises.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
Credit Union allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of branches and office premises the
Credit Union has elected not to separate non- lease components and account for the lease
and associated non-lease components as a single lease component.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°7, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

3.

Significant Accounting Policies {cont’d)

(i)

Leases (cont'd)

Right-of-use assets are measured at their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied
since the commencement date, discounted using the Credit Unicn’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application.

The Credit Union used a number of practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases
previously classified as operating leases under |1AS 17. In particular, the Credit Union:

+« relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous under IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingenf Assets immediately before the date of initial
application as an alternative to performing an impairment review;

» did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases for which the lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial application,

+ did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low-value assets (ie. IT
equipment);

+ excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

s used hindsight when determining the lease term.
Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities:

The Credit Union initially recognises cash resources, financial investments, loans and
advances, accounts receivable, other assets, deposits, loans payabile, regulatory capital
shares and other liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets and
liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Credit Union
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Non-derivative financial assets — Classification and subsequent measurement;
The Credit Union classified its financial assets into one of the following categories:
o  Amortized cost

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH
» Fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL)
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

{Expressed in Barbados dollars)

3. Significant Accounting Policies {cont’'d)
() Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assefs measured af amortized cost:

The Credit Union’s non-derivative financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise
cash and cash equivalents, term depaosits, sovereign debt securities, loan and advances and
accounts receivable. The Credit Union measures these assets at amortized cost as its
business model is to hold them to collect contractual cash flows. Its contractual terms also
give rise to the receipt of principal and interest on specified dates. These financial assets are
not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Credit Union changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model. These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial assefs measured at FVOCI:

The Credit Union’s non-derivative financial assets measured at FVOCI comprise equity
securities. The Credit Union measures these assets at FVOCI as these equity investments
are not held for trading and the Credit Union has irrevocably elected to present subsequent
changes in the investments' fair value in OCl. These assets are measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in statement of comprehensive income unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

The Credit Union's non-derivative financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise equity
securities which are held for trading. These assets are measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including dividend income are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Reclassifications:
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
period after the Credit Union changes its business mode! for managing financial assets.

Non-derivative financial liabilities — Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities other than loan commitments are classified and measured at amortized
cost. Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income. These financial liabilities comprised deposits,
regulatory capital, loans payable and accounts payable and accrued expenses.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS' UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

()

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Business model assessment

The Credit Union makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed
and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

» the stated policies and objectives for the portfolic and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of
the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

» how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Credit Union's
management;

+ the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed,;

« how managers of the business are compensated (e.9. whether compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect
contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial
assets.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

(SPPi)

In assessing whether the contractual cash fiows are SPPI, the Credit Union considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Credit Union
considers:

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension terms;

terms that limit the Credit Union’s claim to cash flows from specified assets; and
features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dolfars)

3.

44

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

0]

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Non-derivative financial assets — Classification and subsequent measurement

Derecognition

Financial assets:

The Credit Union derecognises a financial asset when the contractua rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractuat cash flows
on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantialiy alt of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or in which the Credit Union neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in OC) in respect of equity investment securities
designated as FVOCI is not recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on
derecognition of such securities but transferred to undivided earnings.

The Credit Union enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its
statement of financial position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

In certain transactions, the Credit Union retains the obligation to service the transferred
financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition
criteria.

Financial liabilities

The Credit Union derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire. The Credit Union also derecognises a financial fiability when
its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different,
in which case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

Modifications of Financiat Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Credit Union evaluates whether the
cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially
different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original asset are deemed to have
expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs.
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THE BARBADOS WORKERS’ UNION CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

{Expressed in Barbados dollars)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(i)  Einancial instruments (cont'd)

Modifications of Financial Assets and Liabilities (cont'd)

Financial assets. {cont'd)

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of
the modification is usually to maximize recovery of the original contractual terms rather than
to originate a new asset with substantially different terms. if the Credit Union plans to modify
a financial asset in a way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers
whether a portion of the asset should be written off before the modification takes place.

if the modification of a financial asset measured at amortized cost or FVOCI does not result
in derecognition of the financial asset, then the Credit Union first recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset
and recognises the resuiting adjustment as a modification gain or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Credit Union currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Expected Credit Losses and Impairment

The Credit Union recognises loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following
financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

« financial assets that are debt instruments;
+ loan commitments issued

No impairment loss is recognised on eguity investments

The credit union measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for
the following, for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

» debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date; and

» other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their
initial recognition

The Credit Union considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit

risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade'. The Credit
Union does not apply the low credit risk exemption to any other financial instruments.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
{iy Financial instruments (cont'd)

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from defauit events on a financial instrument
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which
a 12-menth ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 1 financial instruments’.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of the financial instrument. Financial instruments for which z lifetime ECL is recognised but
which are not credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial instruments’.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

¢ financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of
att cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Credit Union expects to
receive);

¢ financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows; and

e undrawn lpan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Credit Union if the commitment is drawn down
and the cash flows that the Credit Union expects to receive;

Restructured Financial Assets

i the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is
replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is
made of whether the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL measured as follows:

e if the expected restructuring wili not result in derecogniticn of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating
the cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

e if the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flows from the existing
financial asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the
cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected
date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the
existing financial asset.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

()

Financial instruments (cont'd)
Restructured Financial Assets (cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the Credit Union assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired (referred to as
‘Stage 3 financial assets'). A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

o significant financiai difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Credit Union on terms that the Credit Union
would not consider otherwise;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
recrganisation; or

s the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving
contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-
impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the
Credit Union considers the following factors:

® The market’'s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields.
¢ The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness
¢ The country's ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

* The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through
veluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

¢ The international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as
‘lender of last resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public
statements, of governments and agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes as
assessment of the depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political intent,
whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies {cont’d)

)i Financial instruments (cont'd)

Restructured Financial Assets (cont'd)

Presentation of aliowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as foliows:

®* Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying
amount of the assets;

e Loan commitments and financiat guarantee contracts: generaily as a provision;

® Debt instruments measured at FVOCL: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement
of financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value.
However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonabile
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally
the case when the Credit Union determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘impairment {osses on financial
instruments’ in the statement of statement of comprehensive income and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Credit Union’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(k) Fair Value

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Credit Union uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1. quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Credit Union is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd)

(k) Fair Value (cont'd)

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (cont'd)

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for exampie,
over the counter derivatives) is determined by using vaiuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and reply as
ittle as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine the
fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in ievel 2. The valuation
technique used was the median value generated from a number of generally accepted
valuation models including; Dividend Discount model, Discounted Cash flow Model, Muitiple
of Book Value, Multiple of Earnings, Multiple of EBITDA, Multiple of Revenues.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value that are not based on observable market data.

If one of more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

()  Cash Resources

Cash resources include notes, coins, stamps held on hand, balances held with banks and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of less than three months.

{(m) Deposits

Deposits are the Credit Union's sources of debt funding and are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs and subsequently at their amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

{n) Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the reporting period from
transactions and events other than those arising from investments by and distributions to the
shareholders. Other Comprehensive Income comprises revenues, expenses, gains and
losses that are recognised in Comprehensive [ncome but excluded from Net Income. Other
Comprehensive Income during 2022 - 2023 comprises unrealized ioss on investments (2021
- 2022 comprised unrealized gain on investments).

(0) New standards, interpretations and amendments to extensive standards mandatory for the
first time for the financial year

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations became effective
during the current period but these did not have a material effect on the Credit Union's
financial statements.
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3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
(p) Standards in issue but not yet effective

New standards, interpretations and amendments to extensive standards that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Credit Union are as follows:

* Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of accounting estimate — effective January 1, 2023

* Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of accounting
policies- effective January 1, 2023.

¢ Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current — effective
January 1, 2024

+ Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — effective January
1, 2024

» Amendments to IAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - effective January 1,
2024

The Credit Union has not yet assessed the impact of the adoption of these standards on its
financial statements.

Financial Risk Management

The Credit Union has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

credit risk

liquidity risk

market risks

operational risks

This note presents information about the Credit Union's exposure to each of the above risks, the
Union’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Union's
management of capital.

Financiat assets of the Credit Union include cash resources, accounts receivable, investments,

loans and mortgages to members and interest receivable. Financial liabilities inciude deposits of
members, regulatory capital and accounts payable and accrued expenses.
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4. Financial Risk Management
(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss te the Credit Union if a member or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Credit Union's cash resources, loans and advances to customers and investment securities.

{n Cash resources
The Credit Union deposits its funds with registered Banks which are subject to
regulations.

(i) Loans and mortgages to members

Credit risk on loans to members is managed using the Total Debt servicing ratio as
well as detailed background checks on members in the approval process and stringent
debt collection procedures. Two officers are assigned with the task of monitoring the
delinquency portfolio on a daily basis. Management has documented a process to be
followed for the collection of outstanding debt. The Credit Committee is responsibie
for advising the Board on Policy based on market trends. The Board and management
revige policy periodically to reduce overall credit risk.

In measuring the credit risk of loans and mortgages to members, the Credit Union
considers the probability of default’ by the client and the likely recovery ratio on the
defaulted obligations (the ‘loss given default’). The Credit Union assesses individual
customers' default probability using internal delinquency reports showing loan in
arrears and ECL models developed by independent service providers to determine the
ECL allowance.

(i) Financial Investments
The Credit Union limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in entities with high
credit ratings and Government Securities. The Credit Union has a documented policy
that guides the management of the credit risk on investment. The Credit Union
exposure and the credit rating of its debtors are continuously monitored, and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved entities.

Classified Loans

This category of loans represents loans for which, in most cases, the collateral has been
realized and the Credit Union estimates that the outstanding balances may be irrecoverable.
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Financial Risk Management {cont’d)

(@

Credit Risk {(cont'd)

Expected credit loss (ECL) allowance

Set out below is an analysis of the gross and net loans and advances to members.

Loans and mortgages to members

Delinquent Loans:
90 days and over
Classified Loans fully provided

Carrying amount
Less: ECL Allowance

Carrying amount less aflowance loans > 90 days
Loans in Good Standing:

Not yet due

1-29 days

30-59 days

60-89 days

Carrying amount
Less: ECL Allowance

Carrying amount less ECL allowance for lpans in
good standing

Total carrying amount

Collateral

2023 2022
5 5

6,040,214 5,721,298
751,470 1,246,615
6,791,684 6,967,913
(2/658,515) _{2,609,281)
4,133,169 __ 4,308,632
2023 2023

$ $
126,281,814 107,408,607
16,006,358 17,221,832
5,911,337 7,198,246
4,643,636 3,345,144
152,843,145 135,173,829
(270.064) __(409,724)
152,573,081 134,764,105
196,706,250 139,122,737

The Credit Uinion holds as coliateral on loans, mortgages on property and land, bills of sale
on vehicles, cash surrender values on life insurance policies, securities held with government

or privately listed companies, cash, guarantors and mutual funds.

Unsecured loans are

granted based on credit risk up to $35,000. The value of security of loans > 90 days is

approximately $7.2 million dollars.

Risk fimit control and mitigation policies

The Credit Union manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are

identified.
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4,

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Credit Risk (cont'd)

The Credit Union employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most
traditional of these is the taking of security for funds advanced, which is common practice.
The Credit Union implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral
or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are;

* Bills of sale over vehicles and equipment;

« Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

= Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable;
+ Charges over financial instruments such as cash, debt securities and equities.

* Hypothecation of deposit balances

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are avaiiable to a customer
as required. Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to
extend credit in the form of loans. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
credit, the Credit Union is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments.

However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most
commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit
standards. The Credit Union menitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater credit risk than shorter-term
commitments,

Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk Carrying amount
Notes 2023 2022
$ 3
Interest receivable 343,398 337,308
Financial investments:
Amortized cost 8 23,044,286 30,963,047
FVOCI 8 5,373,017 5,474,384
FVTPL 8 22,120 22,120
Loans and mortgages to members 156,706,250 139,122,736
Cash resources 19,957,273 15,097 364
Total 2056446344 191,016,957
Liguidity risks

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Credit Union will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
from its financial liabilities as they become due.

Liguidity risks arise from the mismatch in cash flows. The Board manages its liquidity risk by
matching its cash inflows to its cash outflows. Short to medium term leans have been
introduced to ensure that timing of cash inflows is matched to loan disbursements. The cash
balances are monitored on a daily basis.
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4. Financial Risk Management (cont'd)

(b) Liquidity Risks {cont'd)

Deposits from Members
The maturity schedule of the undiscounted cash flows of deposits and loans is detailed below:

2023 BOARD REPORT

March 318, 2023 Less than 3 months 1 year to 5 years
Interest Rate Total 3 months to 1 year 5 years and over
Deposits by Type: $ $ 3 $ $
Term deposits & RRSP 1.00-4.10% 22,692,293 4,465,195 12,967,184 4 467 150 792,764
Other savings 0.10-2.25% 13,071,595 11,904 652 44 392 381,391 741,160
Special Savings 0.20% 8,626,527 8,020,577 9,853 213,317 382,740
Junior Savings 0.25% 2,747 374 2,714,928 - 5,082 27,364
Membership Prime Deposit 0.25% 87,758,042 74,402,156 465,596 4,724,730 8,165,560
Smart Builder 0.50% 56,763,368 52,752,800 132,657 867,182 3.010,729
Total 191,659,199 154.260.308 13619722 10,658,852 13,120,317
Loan by Type: $ $ $ $ $
Personal Loans 4-18% 49,039,709 6,645,544 1,081,680 13,099,755 28,202,730
Business Loans 5-17% 1,165,398 10,000 5,582 232,789 917,027
Other Loans 8- 18% 18,370 - - 18,370 -
Real Estate Loans 4.25-12% 84,181,131 11,286,025 34,423 1,166,398 81,694,285
Revolving Loans 5-18% 14,478,751 4,624,203 383,311 8,427 788 1,043,449
Reclassified Loans 0% 751,470 750,187 589 694 -
Total 159,634,829 23315958  1,515.685 22945794 111,857,491
Liquidity Gap 32,024,370 130.944,349 12,104,137 (12,286,942) (98,737.174)
***
5 28
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4. Financial Risk Management {cont’d)

(b)

Liquidity Risks (cont'd)

Deposits from Members

The maturity schedule of the undiscounted cash flows of deposits and loans is detailed below:

March 31%, 2022

Deposits by Type:

Term deposits & RRSP
Other savings

Special Savings

Junior Savings
Membership Prime Deposit
Srnart Builder

Total

Loan by Type:
Personal Loans
Business Loans
Other Loans

Real Estate Loans
Revolving Loans
Reclassified Loans

Total

Liquidity Gap

Interest Rate

1.00-4.10%
0.20-0.65%
0.25%
0.50%
0.20%
1.00%

.5-18%
7-17%
8-18%
4.5-12%
17%

0%

Less than 3 months 1 year to 5 years
Total 3 months fo 1 year 5 years and over
$ $ $ $ $
22,439,133 3,963,008 10,087,424 8,547,525 841,176
8,179,863 7,287,340 74,159 396,313 422,051
8,042,496 7,596,405 32,001 136,908 277,182
2,848 263 2,843,181 - 5,082 -
81,944 354 70,000,429 543,348 4,467 347 6,933,230
55,989,894 52,251,192 68,538 1,184,120 2,486,044
1 1
$ $ $ $ $
38,537,145 492 714 1,170,108 17,802,299 19,072,024
1,353,270 18,421 8,231 387,532 939,086
104,267 4 864 - 99,403 -
87,964 868 - 126,507 1,870,564 85,967,817
12,935,556 4 266,206 711,810 6,157,208 1,800,332
1,246,815 1,246 615 - - -
_142.141.741 6,028,820 2,016,656 26317006 107,779,259

29
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Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign
exchange notes and credit spreads will affect the Credit Union’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Credit Union may be exposed to market risk as changes in market interest rates affect its
income. Periodically, the Board and management review and approve the rates set to ensure
they are well priced to control these risks.

Interest Rate Risk

Profile:
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying amount

2023 2022
Fixed Rate instruments $ $
Fixed Financial Assets 79,084,714 77,763,877
Fixed Financial Liabilities (20,791,731) (21,525.391)
Net Fixed Rate Instruments _ 58272,983 _ 56,238,488
Variable Rate Instruments
Financial Assets 134,012,291 121,494,163
Financial Liabilities {170.867.469) (158.918.612)
Net Variable Rate Instruments (36,855,178) _(37.424 449)

Operational Risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the Credit Union’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and
from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal
and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
Operational risks arise from all of the Credit Union's operations.

The Credit Union's objective is to manage operational risk by developing and implementing
controls within the operation that would mitigate this risk. That responsibility is assigned to the
Board and Management. There is a policy manual for the staff and volunteers of the Credit
Union. The pelicy manual addressed in detail every functional area of the Credit Union and
provided for some of the more critical function; primarily Loans and Operations, procedures to
carry out such functions.

Compliance with the Credit Union's policies is supported by a programme of periodic reviews
undertaken by the Internal Auditor. The resuits of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with
management, the Supervisory Committee and the Board of Directors.
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4. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(e}

()

Capital Management

The Co-operative Societies (Amendment) Act 2008-39, stipulates that an amount equalling or
greater than 10% of total assets must be held as capitai. The Board of Directors continues to
review the capital structure. The capital to assets ratio is now 7.14% (2022 — 6.42%). The
Financial Services Commission issued a letter indicating that they would give regulatory
forbearance for a period of 5 years, ending 2024 to return the capital ratio to 10%. Additionally, in
2020 the Financial Services Commission informed Credit Unions of its intention to transition to a
risk-based approach for capital calculations.

The Financial Services Commission (FSC) defines “capital’ of a Credit Union as Qualifying
Shares, Statutory, Other Reserves.

The Credit Union objective, when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to its members and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
{See note 15)

Fair Value

Fair value represents the amounts at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm’s
length transaction between willing parties and is best evidenced by a quoted marked price, if one
exists.

Financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts, which approximate to their fair value at the
reporting date. Fair values estimates are made at a specific point in time based on market
conditions and information about the financial instrument.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions can
significantly affect the estimates.

The fair values of cash resources, accounts receivable, interest receivable, accounts payable,
accrued expenses, deposits ioan payable and regulatory capital are not materially different from
their carrying amounts.

The estimated fair values of the financial assets and liabitities, together with their carrying amounts
shown in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2023 2022

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amounts Value Amounts Value

$ 3 $ $

Cash resources 19,957,273 19,857,273 15,097,364 16,097,364
Accounts receivable 868,945 868,945 997.066 997,066
Interest receivable 343,398 343,398 337,306 337,306

Financial investments (nofe 8)

Amortized cost 23,044,286 N/A 30,963,047 N/A
FVOCI 5,373,017 5,373,017 5,474,384 5,474,384
FVTPL 22120 22,120 22,120 22,120
Loans and mortgages (net) 156,706,250 156,706,250 139,122,736 139,122,736
Deposits of members 191,659,199 191,659,199 180,444,003 180,444,003
Regulatory capital (2,849,100) {2,849,100) (2,273,800) (2,273,800)
Accounts payable (2,445,759) {2,445 759) (2,167,251) (2,167,251)
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4. Financial Risk Management {cont’d)

{(g) Loans and Mortgages Receivable

The nature of the Credit Union is such that loans can only be made to members of the Credit
Union or similar societies. As a result of this, a market rate for these loans is not readily
determinable and hence it is impracticable to estimate the fair value of these loans.

Investments
The Investment Portfolio comprises of assets stated at amortized cost and fair value.

{h) Real Property Management

The Co-operative Societies (Amendment) Act 2007-39, sec. 196A states that a Credit Union
may not acquire or hold real property where the market value of the property to be acquired
would cause the aggregate value of the property to exceed 6% of the stated assets of the Credit
Union. At March 31%, 2023, the Credit Union held 1.62% (2022 — 1.76%) in real property.

5. Cash Resources

This balance consists of:

2023 2022
3 $
Cash equivalents 2,382,682 1,473,758
Cash on hand 379,693 699,747
Cash at bank 17.194 898 12,823 859
19,957,273 _15,007,364
6. Interest Receivable
2023 2022
$ $
Loan interest receivable 343,398 337,306

This interest relates to interest accrued on loans and mortgages in good standing at March 31, for the
respective years.

7. Expected Credit Losses
2023 2022
$ $
Loans and mortgages to members 1,055,242 1,651,269
Financial investments (34,736) (71.553)

1,020,506 __1,579.716
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8. Financial Investments
{a) Financial Investments Comprise
2023 2022
Debt securities $ $
Term deposits 8,317,652 16,037,045
Savereign bonds 14,942 080 15,176,184
23,259,732 31,213,229
Less expected credit allowance (215.,446) (250.182)
23,044,286 30,963,047
Equity securities
FVOCI
Corporate equity @ 5,373,017 5,474 384
FVTPL
Corporate equity 22,120 22,120
Tetat financial investments _28439423 _ 36,459,551
Expected Credit Allowance:
Balance at beginning of year impact of IFRS 9 250,182 321,735
Expected credit loss on investments (34,736) (71,553)
Balance at end of year 215,446 260,182

1 On October 1, 2018, the Government of Barbados restructured all of its treasury notes and debentures
and some state-owned debt resulting in the derecognition of the existing debt securities given the
contractual cash flows of the new debt securities were significantly different. The carrying value of those
debt securities was $17,821,554 (i.e. gross carrying value of $18,355,100 net of expected credit
allowance of $533,546). The new series B and D bonds issued by the Government of Barbados effective
October 1, 2018 was $16,157,105, resulting in a derecognition loss on investments of $3,456,726 which

was recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2 The Credit Union outscurces the management of its investment portfolio referred to as the
“Bilue Eagle” to CIBC First Caribbean International Bank's (The Bank) wealth management
department. The Bank was given an investment policy and parameters to guide the
investment decisions. The Investment policy was prepared by a group of members with an
investment career background. Reports are submitted monthly to the management where the
performance of the fund is reviewed. The total fuind under management is $517,867 (2022 -
$658,534). The portfolic is valued by CIBC First Caribbean International Bank Weaith

Management Barbados.
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Financial Investments {(cont’d)

(b)

(©)

Investment of Funds

Section 34(A} (1) of the Co-Operatives Society Act Cap 378A sets out in detail the profile of
institutions and securities in which the Credit Union can invest the funds of the Society including
its reserves.

Section 34(A) (2) limits investments in equities of companies incorporated in Barbados or in a
member state of the Caribbean community and listed on a stock exchange of these states.
These companies must have paid dividends on its shares in the preceding five consecutive
years. Alternatively, they can invest in securities issued by a credit union that is registered in a
member state of the Caribbean community. Such investments shali not exceed 10% of the
statutory reserve of the Credit Union.

The Financial Services Commission can also exercise discretion in allowing other investments
except as defined in section 34(A) (2)

The Financial Services Commission approved the initial investment in Co-operators General
Insurance. As at March 31t 2023, the Credit Union is in breach of these investment provisions
and is in discussion with The Financial Services Commission to bring its investment portfolio in
line with the provision of the Act.

Fair Value Hierarchy

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 3 $ $

investment Securities
Equity securities:

FvOC! - QUOTED 991,343 - - 981,343
FVOCI - UNQUOTED - 4381674 - 4381674
991,343 4,381,674 - 5,373,017

Equity securities:
FVTPL - - 22,120 22,120
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $ $

Investment Securities

Equity securities:
FVOCI - QUOTED 1,000,828 - - 1,000,828
FVOCI - UNQUOTED - 4 460,396 13.160 4 473, 556
1,000,828 4.460,396 13,160 5474, 384

Equity securities:
FVTPL - - 22,120 22,120
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3157, 2023

(Expressed in Barbados dollars)

8. Financial Investments (cont'd)

(c) Fair Value Hierarchy {cont'd)

The following table shows a reconciiiation of all movements in the fair value of financial

investments.

Level 1
2023 022
$ $
Beginning Balance 1,000,828 1,036,336
Other adjustment (4,275) -
Unrealised loss (6210) {35.508)
Ending Balance 991,343 1,000,828

Level 2
2023 022
$ $
Beginning Balance 4,460,396 3,968,314
Unrealised (loss)/gain (104,208) 375,719
Purchased 25486 116,363
Ending Balance 4381674 4,460,396

Level 3
2023 2022
$ $
Beginning Balance 35,280 35,280
Write off (13.160) -
Ending Balance 22,120 .. 25280

9. Loans and Mortgages to Members
Loans and mortgages to members comprise:

2023 2022
$ $
lLoans 65,453,699 54,176,853
Mortgages 94,181,130 87,964,888
159,634,829 142,141,741
Less ECL allowance (2,928.5679) (3.019,005)
156,706,250 139,122,736
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9. Loans and Mortgages to Members (cont'd)

Loans are classified as personal, business, line of credit and other loans. Personal and business loans
bear interest at a rate of 4% to 18% per annum, unsecured Ipans and revolving line of credit at 5%-
18% and other loans at 8% to 18% per annum on the reducing balance. All foans are repayable to the
Credit Union in monthly blended principal and interest instalments over a maximum period of thirty
years.

Mortgages usually bear a floating interest rate of 4.50% per annum on the reducing baiance. As of
March 2023 mortgages are being offered at a variable rate of 4.50% to 6.5% (2022 - 4% to 6.5%) per
annum on the reducing balance. Mortgages are repayable to the Credit Union in monthly blended
principal and interest instalments over a maximum period of thirty years.

Expected Credit Allowance:

2023 2022

5 $
Opening balance (3,019,005) {2,373,689)
Expected credit loss (1,055,242) (1,651,269)
Write offs 1,135,367 799,721
Recoveries 10.301 206,232
Ending balance (2928579}  __(3.019.005)

Loans greater than 90 days past due are considered impaired, and as such, pravision is made in the
accounts for the uncollectable loan principal amounts and interest receivable on all such loans.

10. Accounts Receivable
2023 2022
$ $
Accounts receivable 588,918 986,025
Other Receivable 270,886 -
Interest receivable — investments 9,131 11,041

Accounts receivable mainly represent amounts receivable from the Government of Barbados for taxes
withheld on the Biue Eagle Portfolio.

Other Receivable represents security deposits related to the debit Master Card.
Interest receivable from investments represents interest receivable on fixed-income instruments held

in the Blue Eagle account and interest receivable from deposit accounts held at other financial
institutions,
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1. Property and Equipment
2023
Equipment and
Computer Motor Land and  Leasehold Right of
Software Vehicle Buildings Improvement Total Use Asset
Cost/Valuation $ $ $ 3 $ $
At beginning of year 7,136,988 160,464 3,500,000 966,176 11,763,628 911,399
Additions/WIP 415,803 - - 31,2989 447 102 -
At end of year 7,552,791 160,464 3,500,000 997.475 12,210,730 911,399
Accumultated Depreciation
At beginning of year 4,318,242 115,372 - 819,053 5,252 667 366,716
Charge for year 705,980 9,582 54 673 37,968 808,203 91.679
At end of year 4,954 4. 67 7.021 7 _458,395
Net Book Value 2,528,569 35510  3,445327 140,454 6,149.860 453,004
2022
Equipment and
Computer Motor Landand Lleasehold Right of
Software Vehicle Buildings Improvement Total Use Asset
Cosl/Valuation $ $ $ $ $ $
At beginning of year 6,542,630 160,464 4 536,533 966,176 12,205,803 911,399
Additions/WIP 594,358 - 74,103 - 668,461 -
Revaluation - - (1,110,636) - (1.110.636) -
At end of year 7,136,988 160,464 3,500,000 966,176 11,763,628 _911,399
Accumulated Depreciation
At beginning of year 3,639,293 103,938 124,143 782,377 4,648,751 275,037
Charge for year 677,096 11,434 - 36,676 725,206 91,679
Agdjustment 1,853 - (1,853) - - -
Disposals - - {122,290) - (122.290) -
At end of year 4,318,242 115,372 - 819,053 5252667 _366,716
Net Book Value 18,7 147.1 _544 683
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1. Property and Equipment {cont’d)

Vaiuation of Building

The next valuation is scheduled for the 2024 - 2025 financial year. During the 2021-2022 financial year,
the Board of Directors determined the value of the Credit Union’s building was $3,500,000 based on a
valuation prepared by an independent, professional valuer. The accumulated depreciation of $122,290
on the property at the valuation date was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the property
and the net amount was restated to the revalued amount of the properly. The resulting decrease of
$988,346 was expensed in the statement of comprehensive income.

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses comprise;

2023 2022

$ $

Interest payable on deposits 399,458 472,296
Non-member deposits 126,815 128,530
Professional fees 47,448 86,635
Other payables 1,872,037 1,479,790

— 2445758 _2167.251

Interest payables on deposits represent the accrued amounts that are outstanding but unpaid to
members for their deposits and saving accounts.

Other payables represent staff payables (P.A.Y.E, N.|.S) and miscellaneous trade payables.

13. Lease Liability

Maturity Analysis - Lease Liability

The Credit Union leases branch facilities under operating leases. Payments made under these leases
are amontized over the term of the lease as a reduction to its lease liability for the principal portion and
an interest expense for the associated finance cost. The future minimum rental payments related to
these commitments are as follows:
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13. Lease Liahility (cont’d)

2023 2022

$ $

Current 91,679 98,257
1to 5years 434 520 517,807
Totai 526,199 616,064

During the year ended March 31%, 2023, $31,785 (2022 - $32,528) was recognised as interest
expense on the lease liability in the statement of comprehensive income.

14, Deposits of Members

Members' deposits comprise the following:

2023 2022

$ $

Term deposits 15,347 386 21,525,391
Other deposits 86,694,692 75,060,516
Prime deposits 87,758,042 81,944,354
Registered Retirement Savings Plan 1,858,079 1913742
191,659,169 180,444,003

Term deposits are fixed-term interest-bearing deposits which attract a rate of interest of
1.00% to 1.50% (2022 - 1.00% to 1.50%).

Other deposits represent interest bearing deposits that may be withdrawn on demand. These
deposits attract interest at a rate of 0.20% - 2.25% (2022 - 0.20% - 1.00%).

Prime Deposits, previously known as Members’ Shares, is an interest-bearing deposit account which
has attracted an average rate of 0.25% (2022 - 0.20%) during the financial year.

Registered Retirement Savings Plan is a retirement account registered with the Barbados Revenue
Authority; withdrawals incur a withholding tax. This plan attracted an interest rate of 1.00%
(2022 — 1.00%)
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Regulatory Capital
2023 2022
$ $
Balance at April 1t 2,723,800 2,527,398
Contributions for the year 125,300 196,402
Balance at March 31¢ 2,849,100 2,723,800

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 32 and IFRIC 2, share capitai is classified in the financial
statements as a liability as their terms provide for withdrawal at the option of the members. Shares
are classified as a liability and the appropriate payments classified as an expense and presented as
a charge in arriving at net income for the year. The change in classification does not affect the rights
and obligations of the members as set out in the Act or the Credit Union’s by-laws.

Regulatory Capital represents the amount that has been paid up by members in respect of shares.
Each regular member has twenty shares at a value of $5.00 per share. Each junior member has ten
shares at $5.00 per share. There is no limit to the number of shares the Credit Union is authorized
to issue.

These shares in the co-operative entitle each member to one vote in the conduct of the affairs of the
co-operative at general meetings. Shares may only be withdrawn when the member wishes to end
their membership with the Credit Union. No dividend has been declared for the year. A patronage
refund of $32,436 (2022 - $64,063) was declared for the current year.

Reserves

(a) Statutory Reserve

The statutory reserve is established pursuant to Section 197 (2) of the Co-operative Societies
Act, Cap 378A,

The statutory reserve accumulated transfer from nef income

The Credit Union is required under governing legislation to transfer an amount equivalent to
the greater of one half of one percent (0.5%) of tota! assets or twenty-five percent (25%) of Net
Income (before dividends) to the statutory reserve annually until the capital ratio equals ten
percent (10%). At March 319, capital ratio was 7.14% (2022 - 6.42%). The allocation for the
year was $607,920 (2022 - $122,513).

(b} Education Fund

The Registrar of Co-operatives has advised that 3% of the net income capped at $20,000 be
transferred to an education reserve. This reserve is periodically paid to the Barbados Co-
Operative Credit Union League. The amount transferred for the year was $20,000 (2022 -
$14,702). During the year $14,702 was disbursed from the fund.

(c) Common Good Fung

The common good fund was established by the Credit Union and represents amounts allocated
to facilitate donations to benevoient causes. The amount transferred is 1% of net income. The
amount transferred for the year was $24,317 (2022 - $4,901). During the year $10,000 was
disbursed from the fund.
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16. Reserves (cont’d)

{dy We Care Fund

The We Care Fund was established by the Credit Union and represents amounts allocated to
facilitate assistance to members in need and worthy causes. The amount transferred is 3.5%
(2022 - 0.5%) of net income and any additional amounts approved by the membership at the

annual general meeting. The amount transferred for the year was $97,360 (2022 - $15,050).
During the year $19,065 was disbursed from the fund.

17. Mutual Benefits Plan

This amount represents contributions to the Mutual Benefits Plan, which is administered by
Co-operators General Insurance Company Limited. The plan provides loan protection to the Credit

Union.

18. Major Operating Expenses

These comprise

General and Administrative Expenses

Audit fees

Stationery office supplies
Professional fees
Equipment maintenance
Motor vehicle expense
Supplies

Postage

A/C equipment maintenance
Subscriptions

Motor vehicle insurance

Occupancy Costs
Utilities

Rental expense
Security

Property insurance
Maintenance

Other office expenses
Land tax

GROWTH THROUGH INNOVATION

2023 2022
$ 3
100,658 76,086
66,764 65,661
159,256 242,431
6,782 10,963
13,074 20,786
24,068 26,691
22,798 42,236
12,952 30,889
2,344

3,362 3,362

412,066 ___5191056

180,003 193,999
185,832 184,782
147,362 158,708
76,508 76,508
28,692 164,368
330 2,308
15675 17,068

844 302 797,741
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Major Operating Expenses (cont’d)

Membership Protection and Governance Expenses

MBP premiums

League dues

Volunteer — Training and Development
Reimbursable expenses
Annual meeting

Committee meetings

Other meetings

Committee expenses
Committee activities

Fidelity insurance — Directors
Regulatory fees

Loan Commission

Archiving management

During the year ended March 313, 2023, $185,832 (2022 - $184,782) was recognised as rental
expense in the statement of comprehensive income, which includes lease payments on short-term

leases and other short-term rentals.

Interest and Dividend Income

Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Interest on icans

Interest on mortgages

Interest income on investments
Interest on deposits

Dividend income

Interest and dividend income - gross
Interest expense on financial liabilities
measured at amortized cost

Net interest, realised gain and dividend income
recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Recognised directly in equity
Net unrealized loss/gain on investments for the year

2023 2022

$ $
6,415,582 5,209,771
4,948,063 4,539,684
1,257,815 1,358,500
1,607 -
46,296 119,745
12,669,363 11,227,700
(988.416) (1,102,780}
11,680,947 10,124,920
—(109418)  __ 340211
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20. Related Parties

(@) Identity of Related Parties

The Credit Union has a related party relationship with its directors, committee members and
key management personnel.

{b) Related Party Balances

These represent loans outstanding, shares and deposits held by related parties as identified

in (a} above.
Loans Qualifying
Balance Deposits Shares
3 $ $
As at March 31st, 2023 2,598,099 1,208,166 1,800
As at March 31st, 2022 1,766,646 1,179,636 1,800

{¢) Key Management Personnel Campensation

2023 2022
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 1,288,819 916,154
National Insurance 70,871 56,804
Pensions 10,433 11,797
Health and Life Insurance 2,054 2,276

21. Commitments

Loan commitments

Loan commitments in respect of undisbursed loans as at March 31, 2023, amounted to $11,789,475
(2022 - $13,890,058).

22. Contingencies

At March 31, 2023, there were certain legal proceedings against the Credit Union. In view of the
inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of such matters, the Credit Union cannot state what the
eventual outcome of such matters will be; however, based on current knowledge, the Credit Union
does not believe that habilities, if any, arising from pending litigation will have a material adverse
effect on its financial position or results of operations.
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